
BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

STEPHANIE DENNISON CURRIER 
9445 Nickellaus Court 
Corona, CA 92883 

Pharmacy Technician Registration No. 
TCH 85684 

Respondent. 

Case No. 4406 

OAH No. 2013020483 

DECISION AND ORDER 

The attached Stipulated Surrender of License and Order is hereby adopted by the 

Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this matter. 

This decision shall become effective on November 25, 2013. 

It is so ORDERED on November 20,2013. 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

A{.~ 
By 

STAN C. WEISSER 
Board President 
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KAMALA D. HARRIS 
Attorney General of California 
LINDA K. SCHNEIDER 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
DESIREE I. KELLOGG 
Deputy Attorney General 
State Bar No. 126461 

110 West "A" Street, Suite 1100 

San Diego, CA 921 01 

P.O. Box 85266 

San Diego, CA 92186-5266 

Telephone: (619) 645-2996 

Facsimile: (619) 645-2061 


Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

STEPHANIE DENNISON CURRIER 
9445 Nickellaus Court 
Corona, CA 92883 

Pharmacy Technician Registration No. TCH 
85684 

· Respondent. 

Case No. 4406 

OAH No. 2013020483 

STIPULATED SURRENDER OF 
LICENSE AND ORDER 

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties in this 

proceeding that the following matters are true: 

PARTIES 

1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) is the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy. 

She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this matter by Kamala 

D. Harris, Attorney General ofthe State of California, by Desiree I. Kellogg, Deputy Attorney 

General. 

2. Stephanie Dennison Currier (Respondent) is represented in this proceeding by 

attorney Stacie L. Patterson, Esq., whose address is 110 West C St., Ste. 2200, San Diego, CA 

92101. 
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3. On or about September 12, 2008, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Technician 

Registration No. TCH 85684 to Stephanie Dennison Currier (Respondent). The Pharmacy 

Technician Registration was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought in 

Accusation No. 4406 and will expire on September 30, 2014, unless renewed. 

JURISDICTION 

4. Accusation No. 4406 was filed before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of 

Consumer Affairs, and is currently pending against Respondent. The Accusation and all other 

statutorily required documents were properly served on Respondent on January 7, 2013. 

Respondent timely filed her Notice of Defense contesting the Accusation. A copy of Accusation 

No. 4406 is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference. 

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS 

5. Respondent has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the 

charges and allegations in Accusation No. 4406. Respondent also has carefully read, fully 

discussed with counsel, and understands the effects of this Stipulated Surrender of License and 

Order. 

6. Respondent is fully aware of her legal rights in this matter, including the right to a 

hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to confront and cross-examine 

the witnesses against her; the right to present evidence and to testify on her own behalf; the right 

to the issuance of subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of 

documents; the right to reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision; and all other 

rights accorded by the California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws. 

7. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and 

every right set forth above. 


CULPABILITY 


8. Respondent admits the truth of each and every charge and allegation in Accusation 

No. 4406, agrees that cause exists for discipline and hereby surrenders her Pharmacy Technician 

Registration No. I:CH 85684 for the Board's formal acceptance. 
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9. Respondent understands that by signing this stipulation she enables the Board to issue 

an order accepting the surrender of her Pharmacy Technician Registration without further 

process. 

RESERVATION 

10. The admissions made by Respondent herein are only for the purposes ofthis 

proceeding, or any other proceedings in which the Board of Pharmacy is involved, and shall not 

be admissible in any other criminal or civil proceeding. 

CONTINGENCY 

11. This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Board ofPharmacy. Respondent 

understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the Board of Pharmacy may 

communicate directly with the Board regarding this stipulation and surrender, without notice to or 

participation by Respondent or her counsel. By signing the stipulation, Respondent understands 

and agrees that she may not withdraw her agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation prior to the 

time the Board considers and acts upon it. If the Board fails to adopt this stipulation as its 

Decision and Order, the Stipulated Surrender and Disciplinary Order shall be of no force or 

effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action between the parties, 

and the Board shall not be disqualified from further action by having considered this matter. 

12. The parties understand and agree that Portable Document Format (PDF) and facsimile 

copies ofthis Stipulated Surrender of License and Order, including Portable Document Format 

(PDF) and facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the sarrie force and effect as the originals. 

13. This Stipulated Surrender of License and Order is intended by the parties to be an 

integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement. 

It supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions, 

negotiations, and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Surrender of License and Order 

may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a writing 

executed by an authorized representative of each of the parties. 

14. In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that 

the Board may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following Order: 
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ORDER 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED" that Pharmacy Technician Registration No. TCH 85684, issued 

to Respondent Stephanie Dennison Currier, is surrendered and accepted by the Board of 

Pharmacy. 

1. The surrender of Respondent's Pharmacy Technician Registration and the acceptance 

of the surrendered license by the Board shall constitute the imposition ofdiscipline against 

Respondent. This stipulation constitutes a record of the discipline and shall become a part of 

Respondent's license history with the Board of Pharmacy. 

2. Respondent shall lose all rights and privileges as a pharmacy technician in California 

as of the effective date of the Board's Decision and Order. 

3. Respondent shall cause to be delivered to the Board her pocket license and, if one was 

issued, her wall certificate on or before the effective date of the Decision and Order. 

4. If she ever applies for licensure or petitions for reinstatement in the State of 

California, the Board shall treat it as a new application for licensure. Respondent shall satisfy all 

requirements applicable to that license as of the date the application is submitted to the Board, 

including, but not limited to certification by a nationally recognized body prior to the issuance of 

a new license. Respondent is required to report this surrender as disciplinary action. Respondent 

stipulates that should she apply for any license from the Board on or after the effective date of 

this decision, all of the charges and allegations contained in Accusation No. 4406 shall be deemed 

to be true, correct and admitted by. Respondent when the Board determines whether to grant or 

deny the application or petition. 

5. Respondent shall pay the agency its costs of investigation and enforcement in the 


amount of $6,541.50 prior to issuance of a new or reinstated license. 


6. If Respondent should ever apply or reapply for a new license or certification, or 

petition for reinstatement of a license, by any other health care licensing agency in the State of 

California, all of the charges and allegations contained in Accusation No. 4406 shall be deemed to 

be true, correct, and admitted by Respondent for the purpose of any Statement of Issues or any 

other proceeding seeking to deny or restrict licensure. 
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7. Respondent shall not apply for licensure or petition fox reinstatement fot three (3) 

years :from the e:ffuctive date ofthe Boiiqd ofPbMmacy's Decision and O.tde!:. 

ACCEPTANCE 

I have carefully read the above Stipulated Surrender ofLicense and Order and have fully 

discussed itwith. my attorney, Stacie L. PattersQn. 1unde:r:stand the stipulation and 1he effect it 

will have on my Pharmacy Technician Regi~on. I enter into this S1ipulated Slll'Iender of 

LicenBC and Ot®;r voltmta:cil:y, lmowingly~ and intelligently, and agree to be bot1nd by the 

Decision and Order offue Board ofPharmacy. 

DATED: 

1 STEPHANIE DENNISON CURRlER 
Responde.nt

I have read and fully discnsse,d with Respondent Stephanie Dennison Cmrierthe terms and 

The foregoing Stipulated Surrender ofLicense and Order is hexeby respectfully submitted 

fur ccms~tionby the Board ofPlulrmacy ofthe Department df Consumer A:ffidm. 

DATED: sl2__'i Ii] Respectfully submitled, 


KAMALA D. HARRIS 

Af!O~Gimcml of Cal~·
ornia· 
L ~L~m . 
S · · Dep' Att Geneml 

3m.Ol2'704069 

?07.57166.doc 
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Accusation No. 4406 
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K.AIVlALA D. HARRIS 

Attorney_ General of Cali~ornia

JAMES M. LEDAKIS 

Supervising Deputy Attorney General 

DESIREE I. KELLOGG 

Deputy Attorney General 

State Bar No. 126461 · 


110 West ''N1 Street, Suite 1100 

San Diego, CA 92101 

P.O. Box 85266 

San Diego, CA 92186~5266 

Telephone: (619) 645~2996 

Facsimile: (619) 645-2061 


Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 
·BOARD OF PHARMACY

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE Oi CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

STEPHANIE DENNISON CURRIER 
9445 Nickellaus Court· 

Corona, ~A 92883 


Pharmacy Technician License No. TCH 

85684 


Respondent. 

·Case No. 4406 


ACCUSATION 

Coin_plainant alleges: 

PARTIES 

1. Virginia Herold (Complain~t) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity 

as the Executive Offic~r ofthe.Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs. 

· 2. On or about September 12,2008, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Technician 

License Number TCH 85684 to Stephanie Dennison Currier (Respondent). The Pharmacy 

Technician License was in full for.ce and effect at all times relevant-to the charges brought herein 

and will expire on September 30, 2014, unless renewed. 
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JURISDICTION 

.., 

J, This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of 

Consumer Affairs, lmder the authority of the following laws: All section references are to the 

Business and Professions Code (Code) unless otherwise indicated. 

4. Section 4300, subdivi~ion (a) of the Code states "Every license issued may be 

suspended or revoked." 

5. Section 118, subdivision (b), of the Code provides that the suspension, expiration, 

surrender, or cancellation of a li.cense shall not deprive the Board of jurisdiction to proceed with a 

disciplinary action during the period ·within which the license may be renewed, restored, reissued 

or reinstated, 

STATUTORY PROVISIONS 

6. Section 4~01 ofthe Code states: 

The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of 
unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or . 
misrepresentation or issued by mistake, Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is 
not limited to, any of the following: 

(f) The commission of any act involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, 
deceit; or corruption, whether the act is committed in the course of relations as a 
licensee or otherwise, and whether the act is a felo"ny or misdemeanor or not. 

·G) The violation of a,ny of the statutes of this state, or any other state, or of the 
United States regulating controlled substances and dangerous. drugs. . 

(o) Violating or attempting to violate;. directly or indirectly, or assisting in or 
·abetting the violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this chapter 
or of the applicable federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, 
including regulations established by the board or by any other state or federal 
regulatory agency. 

7. Section 4022 of the Code states 

"Dangerous drug" or "dangerous device" means any drug or device unsafe for 
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self:use in humans or animals,. and includes the following: 

(a) Any drug that bears the legend: "Caution: federal law prohibits dispensing 
without prescription," "Rx only," or words of similar import. 

(b) Any device that bears the statement: "Caution: federal law restricts this 
d~vice to sale by or on the OTder of a , " 11 Rx only," or words of similar 
import, the bl.ank to be fllled in with the designation of the practitioner licensed to use. 
or order use of the device. 

(c) Any other drug or device that by federal or state law can be lawfully 
dispensed only on prescription or furnished pursuant to Section 4006. 

. 

· 

8. Section 4059 ofthe Code states, in pertinent part, that a person may not furnish any 

dangerous drug except upon the prescription of a physician, dentist, podiatrist, optometrist, 

veterinaria:ri, or natUropathic doctor pursuant to Se~tion 3640.7. A person may not furnish any 

·dangerous devipe, except upon the prescriptidn of a physician, dentist,·podiatrist, optometrist, 

veterinarian, or natmopathic doctor pursuant to Se.ction 3640.7. 

9. Section 4060 of the Code states: 

No person ·shall possess any controlled substance, except that furnished to a 
person upon tp.e prescription of a physician, dentist, podiatrist, optometrist, 
veterinarian, or naturopathic doctor pursuant to Section 3 640.7, or furnished pursuant 
to a drt+g order issued by a certif1ed nurse-midwife pursuant to Section 2746.51, a 
nurse practitioner pursuant to Section 28 3 6.1, or a physician assistant pursuant to 
Section 3 5 02.1, or naturopathic doctor pursuant to Section 3 640.5, or a pharmacist 
pursuant to either subparagraph (D) of paragraph (4) of, or clause (iv) of 
subparagraph (A) of paragraph (5) of, subdivision (a) of Section 4052. This section 
shall not apply to the possession of any controlled substance· by a manufacturer,· 
wholesaler, pharmacy, pharmacist, physician, podiatrist, dentist, optometrist, · 
veterinarian, naturopathic doctor, certified nurse-midwife, nurse practitioner, or 
physician assistant, when in stock in containers correctly labeled with the name and 
address of the supplier or producer. 

10. · United States Code, title 21, section 843 states, in pertinent part: 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person knowingly or intentionally­

(3) to acquire or obtain possession of a controlled substance by 

misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception, or subterfuge; 
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COST RECOVERY 

11. Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the 

administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of 

the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and 

enforcement of the case. 

DRUG 

12. Hydrocodone/APAP,'sold under the brand rtames Vicodin, Norco, Lorcet, et al., is a 

Schedule III controlled substance as designated by Health and Safety Code section 11056, 

subdivision (e)( 4), and is classified as a dangerous drug pursuant to Business 8.]1d Professions 

Code section 4022. 

FACTS 

13. Respondent was employed as a pharmacy technician by Riverside County Regional 

Medical Center in Moreno Valley, California until she was terminated on December 20, 2010; 

14. She was the sole Operating R?om Technician for the Outpatient Pharmacy where·she 

was responsible for assisting with the filling and disp·ensing of prescriptions for patients who had 

"same day surgeries." Her duties included delivering prescriptions for controlled substances and 
l 

dangerous drugs in ''lunch size" brown paper bags to patients who had just had surgeries 

performed on them in the "Post-Op Room." Per the Outpatient Pharmacy procedures,· 

Respondent was responsible for having the patients execute an acknowledgment that they had 

received the filled prescriptions for controlled substances or da.rigerqus drugs or had decided to 

refuse them. If a patient refused a.prescription for controlled substances or dangerous drugs, · 

Respondent was responsible for returning those prescriptions to the Outpatient Pharmacy where 

tl1e pharm~cist would reverse the insurance charge·s and return the drugs to the phannacy 

inventory. Respondent was admonished for failing to have patients execute the acknowledgments 

indicating whether they had received or refused the prescriptions for controlled substances or 

dangerous drugs. 

15. Respondent requested and attended a meeting with the Director ofPharmac-y, the 
. . 

Pharmacy Supervisor and the Pharmacy Technician Supervisor on December 20, 2010. During 
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the meeting, Respondent admitted to them that she had taken discharged surgical patients' 
. . 

prescriptions for controlled substances. Respondent was then terminated. After receivmg 

Respondent's keys to her p~rsonallocker and desk at Riverside County Regional Medical Center, 

her desk and locker were searched. Bottles of prescriptions for hydroco done were found in her 

formerly locked desk and locker 'for which she was the only person who had access to them. 

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Unprofessional Conduct- Moral Turpitude, Dishonesty, Fraud, Deceit & Corruption) 


16. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301(£) of the Code in .that 

Respondent stole controlled substances and dangerous drugs from her ernpl~yer using fraud, 

deceit; and dishonesty, as detailed in paragraphs 13-15, abov.e. Such conduct is substantially 

related to the qualifications, duties, and·functions of a pharmacy tecb.ni~ian. 

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Unprofessional Conduct- Violation of California Statutes Regulating 
·Controlled Substances & Dangerous Drugs) 

'17. Respondent is subject to dis~iplinary action under section 4301G) of the Code in that 

Respondent knowingly violated Business and Professio~s Code sections 4022 and 4059 when ·she 

obtained and/or furnished to herself controlled substances and dangerous drugs without a v~lid 

prescription, as detailed in paragraphs 13-15, above. 

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Unprofessional Conduct -Violating Federal & State Laws 
· & Regulations Governing Pharmacy) 

18. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 430l(o) of the Code in 
. . 
that Respondent obtained controlled substances by fraud from the pharmacy where she was 

employed, and knowingly violated Title 21 U.S.C. section 843, subdivision (a)(3), Board of 

Pharmacy Regulations (CalifoJII..ia Code of Regulations, Title 16, Sectioi1 1700, et seq.), and the 

California U:D.iform Controlled Substances Act (Health and Safety Code 11000, et seq.), as 

detailed in p13:ragraphs 13-15, above. 
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PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hea~?-g be held on the matters herein alleged, 

and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision: 

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Technician License Number TCH 85684, issued 

to Stephanie Dennison Currier; 

2. Ordermg Stephanie Dennison Currier to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable 

costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions 

Code section 125.3; · 

3. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper. 

DATED: 

SD20 12704069 

70636778.doc 
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--~1-~~~~~~--------
VJRG 
Exec 'v Officer 
Board ofPhannacy 
Department of Consum~r Affairs 
State of California 
Complainant 
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